
Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting 
Minutes  June 20, 2012  Page 1 

 
GRISWOLD ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING   
 
MINUTES  June 20, 2012  GRISWOLD TOWN HALL 
 
I. REGULAR MEETING (7:00 P.M.) 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
Chairman Thomas Giard,  Jr.  called  this  special meeting of  the Griswold Economic Development Commission  to 
order at 7:02 P.M. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
Present:  Chairman Thomas Giard, Jr., Paul Lach, Chris Hargus, Erika Bevis, Kevin Skulczyck, Town Planner Carl 

Fontneau, and Recording Secretary Donna Szall. 
 
3. Determination of Quorum 
 
There was a quorum for this regular meeting. 
 
4. Approval of Minutes 
 
A. Approval of minutes of Regular Meeting of May 16, 2012 
 
T. Giard asked for any corrections or omissions to the minutes of 5/16/12.   E. Bevis made a motion to approve the 
minutes of 5/16/12. P. Lach seconded the motion.  All were in favor. The motion was carried. 

 
5. Workshop 

 
A. Triangle status check 
 
C. Fontneau stated that the next steps of the triangle parcel.  He stated that David Kaplan of Kaplan associates is 
close to hiring a site designer and that the town is ready to make changes to make the project possible.  P & Z set a 
public  hearing  to make  changes  to  the  industrial  zone  for  assisted  living  facilities.    He  stated  that  this  use  is 
classified  commercial  so  it  can be  in  the  industrial  zone  for  226 Main  St.   He  stated  that  an RFP  for  Licensed 
Environmental Professional Services is out and has been sent to the four finalists from an earlier Phase III ESA/Rap  
and is pending; LEP services was strongly encouraged by Dorie Parr the EPA project manager. The LEP is technically 
qualified to make judgments and to act on behalf of the town to manage and direct contractors hired at the site 
and write the RFP specifications for the project work to be done.   T. Giard asked how this is funded.  C. Fontneau 
stated  that  it  is paid out of  the grant;  the costs are  impeded  into  the original estimates and  it will be split out. 
There was discussion of this matter.  
 
C. Fontneau stated that there is an Appendix  A  of for a modification of the existing contract with DEP to extend 
the grant by the Bond Commission the tasking on the grant to the demolition phase of approximate $80,000 for 
hazardous building materials testing which will fully expend the EPA grant. 
 



Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting 
Minutes  June 20, 2012  Page 2 

C. Fontneau stated  that he will write a  letter proposal  from qualified sources  from a state historic preservation 
office  list  for  photo  documentation  of  the  buildings  on  the  site  that  is  required  by  the DECD  and  EPA  before 
demolition begins. He stated that it should be under $7,500. 
 
C. Fontneau explained that he will talk with the DOT about a memorandum of understand regarding filling half of 
the tunnel under East Main Street (Route 201) and the Working Reality the property owners of the Triangle large 
parcel and DOT can work with them. 
 
C. Fontneau explained he has will put some minor modifications to the Business Incentives Policy/Ordinance which 
is of  interest to Mr. Kaplan.   T. Giard asked  if this was the tax abatement.   C. Fontneau stated that the Business 
Incentives Policy/Ordinance  is  the  statutory  tax abatement ordinance. T. Giard  stated  that  this  requires a  town 
meeting for approval set by the BOS and that the EDC should attend this meeting.  He stated that other individuals 
should be encouraged  to  attend  to  show  support  for  this Business  Incentives Policy.   He  stated  that  this  is  an 
important economic tool.  There was discussion of this matter including that there are many checks and balances 
in this proposed ordinance.  T. Giard asked for a finished copy to be set the member for their review.  C. Fontneau 
stated that it should be ready by the next meeting.   
 
T. Giard asked that members attend the Planning & Zoning Meeting on July 9, 2012 for the zone changes that are 
proposed to speak on behalf of the special exception.   C. Fontneau stated that the use will be extended  into the 
Industrial zone as well as warehouse distribution facilities will be extended into the C‐1 zone.  T. Giard asked that 
the agenda and the zoning regulations be sent to members.  D. Szall will send the information via email. 
 
B. Discussion of Request for commercial incentives through the Buy‐in Fee Credit Program 
 
T. Giard explained that this item is moving along nicely in his opinion.  He explained that he has met several times 
with the Jewett City people and gave them the list of grant monies provided by the town in the amount of more 
than $4 millions.   He  stated  that  they  seemed  to be  cooperative  since  the  last meeting.   Ken  Sullivan and  the 
GWPCA submitted a list of 4 or 5 concerns for issues that would come up. T. Giard took their concerns and created 
a MOU that C. Fontneau reviewed and it is presently with the first selectman and it will go the attorney for review.  
He stated that a document should come to us as how it would work and from that point forward it can be a go.  He 
stated that there is a copy of the MOU that will be approved by the BOS and the overseer will be the GWPCA.  T. 
Giard stated it will allow 100,000 gallons that is tied to 10 full time jobs and for economic development only to be 
more  competitive with  surrounding  towns.   There was discussion of  this matter  including  that  the MOU would 
eliminate the buy‐in tie‐in fees for developers to cut down the initial capital costs.  
 
C. Fontneau stated that there should be a website that is just economic development to list sites with the owner's 
permission.  T.  Giard  stated  that  there  should  be  a  link  for  a  listing  of  available  properties  just  for  Economic 
Development  in Griswold.   C. Fontneau stated  that  this was suggested P & Z donated  funds  for a review of  the 
website by a consultant who was part of the MDP when it was being developed. T. Giard asked how much it would 
cost.  C. Fontneau stated that it would not cost that much for the website. E. Bevis stated that you need someone 
to design it.  K. Skulczyck stated that the Businessmen Now is reforming and suggested that Jamie Caporaso could 
possibly create a website.  There was discussion of this matter.   
 
C. Discussion of STEAP grant downtown streetscape improvements 
 
T. Giard asked  if  the Main Street monies can enhance  the Main Street Businesses.   C. Fontneau stated  that we 
would want all the businesses in town.  He stated that it had to be Main Street businesses for contractor services in 
order  to get reimbursed by the grant.     T. Giard stated  that  the upfront costs can be paid by  the grant and  the 
other funding can come later. C. Fontneau stated that he wanted an agenda item at the BOS regarding what to do 
with the rest of the grant.     He recommended that the BOS be firmly behind anything before going forward.   He 
stated that the set up for the website would be there.   K. Skulczyck stated that CVS and Duncan Donuts have been 
looking at properties in town on North Main Street.  C. Fontneau stated that they have not come to see me.  There 
was discussion of this matter including proposed lighting on Main Street.  
 
C.  Fontneau  asked  for  a  list  to  present  to  the  selectmen  for  the  remaining  money:  benches,  economic 
development website,  lighting,  banners.  K.  Skulczyck  asked  if  that money  can  be  used  for  tax  incentives  for 
downtown businesses.   C.  Fontneau  stated probably not.   He  could  ask  the DECD  this question but  this  is  for 
contractor services and purchases.   E. Bevis asked if it can be used for façade improvement.  C. Fontneau stated 
that $98,000  is not enough money for façade  improvements and  item purchases.   C. Fontneau stated that there 
needs to be a self‐sustaining façade improvement program that requires a Planning & Zoning Village District with 



Economic Development Commission 
Regular Meeting 
Minutes  June 20, 2012  Page 3 

design  guidelines  to  be  absolutely  required  for  a  façade  improvement  program.  There was  discussion  of  this 
matter.   
 
C. Fontneau stated  that  this should come  to a public hearing  through  the BOS so  that  this concept plan will be 
endorsed by the BOS.  T. Giard suggested that this be suggested at an August BOS meeting for the public hearing.  
C. Fontneau will send a  letter to the BOS to set a public hearing in August for BOS to formally accept the Kent & 
Frost Plan for the new Main Street Investment Fund grant under PA 11‐1. T. Giard stated that the EDC members 
attend this public hearing.    T. Giard explained that Jamie worked on the logo banner.  K. Skulczyck suggested that 
Jamie attend the August Selectmens meeting regarding the banners.  There was discussion of this matter including 
parking and bump outs. C. Fontneau will add Municipal parking, the town hall site, facades,  
 
D. Report of activity from the Space Needs Committee 
 
T. Giard reported that the senior center was discussed regarding a time limit and a second story and architectural 
questions. T. Giard stated  that Ryan Aubin came  in with an alternate proposal  for a metal building at  the skate 
board park and that there were a  lot of positives.   C. Fontneau stated that what every Ryan Aubin decides for a 
plan, there must be an 8‐24 Review by the Planning & Zoning Commission before going forward with any project. 
There  as discussion of  this matter  including  that metal buildings match  the  area  architecturally per  the  zoning 
regulations. 
 
E. Status review for commercial projects 

 
C. Fontneau explained that the garden center will be CO and opened in September.  He stated that there is a large 
lot  in  the Wetland  Commission which will  be  a  sand &  gravel  operation where  a  commercial  building will  be 
proposed when the sand and gravel operation is completed with the 150 foot upland review areas of the C‐1 zone 
at Exit 86 on Route 201. He stated that the Wetlands Commission is holding a public hearing in the interest of the 
public and there is an intervenor against this project. .  There was discussion of this matter.  
 
C. Fontneau stated that Americinn was to create a lot for a non‐profit 8000 professional medical office building on 
Route 164.  He stated that there are two C‐1 parcels and business park parcels to get interest for a big project that 
could  happen here  and  are part  of  the  Enterprise  Zone.   He  stated  that  the  assisted  living  facility  is  closer  to 
becoming a reality. 
 
T. Giard stated that there is a copy of the MOU for the buy‐in  is attached to the read along.  C. Fontneau asked if 
anyone wanted to go the SECOG public hearing for the State PoCD on September 10, 2012 at 7 pm.  K. Skulczyck 
stated that he would like to go.  C. Fontneau will send him information. 
 
K. Skulczyck asked if the St. Mary School could be considered for a youth center and the state police.  C. Fontneau 
stated that if the Church was interested. He stated that Sheldon Oaks was going to be leased for 99 years by the 
Church. There was discussion of this matter.  
 
T. Giard stated that he talked to the First Selectman regarding the 20 businesses have agreed to take planters and 
water them and pluck off the dead flowers.  He stated that the First Selectman stated that they will be installed by 
July 4th  and  a  landscaping  contractor will  add  the plantings  and maintain  the planters which he  is  getting  two 
quotes.   
 
6. Correspondence 

 
7. Adjournment 

 
T. Giard asked for a motion to adjourn.  K. Skulczyck made a motion to adjourn. C. Hargus seconded the motion. All 
were in favor. The meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
 

 
 
  Donna M. Szall 
  Recording Secretary 
 


